
 1 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 9, 2016 

Regular Meeting - 6:30 PM 

 
City Hall – Beryl P. Robinson, Jr. Conference Room 

317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 
 

 

MISSION STATEMENT  

The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town  

character and historical architecture while providing quality public services for our 

 current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

 

 

 Jennifer Ray, Mayor 

Robert Bergman, Council Member   Evans Phelps, Vice Mayor 

Terri Andersen, Council Member   Duane Strawser, Council Member 
 

The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are scheduled at 6:30 PM on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of 

each month.  Your interest is encouraged and appreciated.  This meeting is recorded on DVD and is televised on 

local public television Channel 17.  Other special accommodations may be requested to the City Clerk 72 hours in 

advance of the meeting.  Please turn off all cell phones or similar devices.  Action may be taken on any agenda item.  

Agenda notices are available at City Hall.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after 

distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada 

City, CA during normal business hours. 

 
ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY ITEM ON THIS 

AGENDA: After receiving recognition from the Mayor, give your name and address, and then your comments or 

questions. Please direct your remarks to the Councilmembers. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity 

to speak, please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. All citizens will be afforded an 

opportunity to speak, consistent with their Constitutional rights. Time limits shall be at the Mayor's discretion. IF 

YOU CHALLENGE the Council's decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues 

you or someone else raised at the meeting or Public Hearing described on this agenda, or in written correspondence 

delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the meeting or Public Hearing.   

 

 

REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 

 

Roll Call:  Andersen, Bergman, Strawser, Vice Mayor Phelps, & Mayor Ray 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 

Led by North Star Chapter DeMolay 

 

PROCLAMATION:   Proclaiming March 2016 as March for Meals Month 

 

PRESENTATION:   Swearing in of Reserve Officers Shayne Robert McLaughlin and Shane 

Michael Scrimager 

 

 

 
 



 2 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 

 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public are entitled to address 

the City Council concerning any item within the Nevada City Council’s subject matter 

jurisdiction. Comments on items NOT ON THE AGENDA are welcome at this time.  

Normally, public comments are limited to no more than three minutes each.  Except for 

certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 

action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

 

2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 

3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council 

and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate discussion of 

these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the 

Council, City staff or the public request specific items to be removed from the Consent Calendar 

for separate discussion and action. 

 

A. Subject:  Award Contract for New Sewer Line on Providence Mine Road in Nevada 

City 

Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2016-XX to award a contract in the amount of 

$29,148, plus $3,500 contingencies to C&D Contractors Inc., Nevada City, CA for a 

new sewer line on Providence Mine Road in Nevada City and authorize Mayor to 

sign. 

 

B. Subject:  Nevada City Farmers Market Street Closure Request 

Recommendation:  Review and authorize Nevada City Farmers Market street 

closure request per application. 

 

      4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 

 

A. City Council Meeting – February 24, 2016 

 

5. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 

 

A. Subject: 2nd Quarter Financial Update, Fiscal year (fy) 15/16 

Recommendation: Receive and file 

 

B. Subject:  City of Nevada City Budget Calendar 2016-2017 

Recommendation:  Review and approve the attached budget calendar with 

recommended operating and capital budget preparation schedule for fiscal year 2016-

2017. 

 

 

 



 3 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

A. Subject:  Hosted Short-term Rental Registration Fee and Good Neighbor Policy 

Recommendation:  Pass 1) Resolution 2016-XX adopting a processing fee for 

reviewing registration forms for hosted short-term rentals; and 2) Resolution 2016-

XX adopting a “Good Neighbor Policy” to be distributed to renters of hosted short-

term rental units.   

 

7. OLD BUSINESS: 

 

A. Subject:  Proposed Three-Month Designated Smoking Area Pilot Project 

Recommendation: Approve three-month designated smoking are pilot project in the 

Commercial Street Parking Lot. 

 

B. Subject:  Robinson Plaza Tables and Chairs 

Recommendation:  1) Find the project categorically exempt pursuant to CEQA 

Guideline §15301; and 2) Approve the design and placement of permanent table and 

chair units at Robinson Plaza. 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 

 

9. CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 

11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT 



 4 

Certification of Posting of Agenda 

I, Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager for the City of Nevada City, declare that the foregoing agenda for the 

March 9, 2016 Regular Meeting of the Nevada City City Council was posted March 4, 2016 at the office of the City 

of Nevada City (City Hall). The agenda is also posted on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov. 

 

Signed this March 4, 2016 at Nevada City, California 

 

 

__________________________________, Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

City Council 

Long Range Calendar 

 

 

March 30, 2016  Regular City Council Meeting (Rescheduled from March 23) 

March 31, 2016  Cesar Chavez Day Holiday – City Hall Closed 

April 13, 2016  Regular Council Meeting 

April 27, 2016  Regular Council Meeting 

 

 

 

 

NOTE:  This list is for planning purposes; items may shift depending on timing and capacity of a meeting. 

 

NOTICE:  As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to 

remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive 

while addressing said Council and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


5



6



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 

        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 

March 9, 2016 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Nevada City Farmers Market Street Closure Request  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and authorize Nevada City Farmers Market 
street closure request per application. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  On February 9, 2016, the City received an 
application for the Saturday Nevada City Farmers Market series of events 
beginning June 4 and running through November 19. The proposed event hours 
are 8:30am to 1:00pm as they were in 2015 as are the proposed street closures: 
  

- Union Street between Broad Street and Main 
- Robinson Plaza 

 
A summary of the specific event characteristics and recommended staff 
conditions are included in the application packet. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENT:   
 

 Street Closure/Special Event Application 
 

7

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



1  

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2016 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to 
Quick Links and Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the 
screen.  Select the meeting date and Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, 
please contact Corey Shaver, Deputy City Clerk at (530) 265-2496, ext 133. 
 
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
- Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 

 
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:  Present:  Andersen, Bergman, Strawser, Vice Mayor Phelps, & Mayor Ray 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
PROCLAMATION:  Proclamation Acknowledging March 2016 as DeMolay Month in Nevada City. 
 
PRESENTATION:   None 
 
1.  BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR-PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
2.  COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
City Manager Prestwich requested the City Council add a Closed Session item at the conclusion of the 
meeting to discuss significant exposure to litigation. 
 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Andersen, to add a Closed Session pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) regarding a significant exposure to litigation in one potential 
case. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov for additional 
comments. 
 
3.  CONSENT ITEMS: 

 

A. Subject:  Amendment No. 1 to Nevada City Fire Department Employees Association 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) – Addition of the Classification Firefighter 
Recommendation: Review and approve Amendment No. 1 to the Nevada City Fire Department 
Employees Association MOU for the incorporation of the classification for a firefighter effective 
January 30, 2016. 
 

 
 

17

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


2  

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 24, 2016 
Page 2 
 

B. Subject:  Fire Activity Report – January 2016 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

C. Subject:  Award Contract for CCTV Sanitary Sewer Inspection Project 
Recommendation:  Pass Resolution 2016-XX 1) Finding the project categorically exempt 
pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guideline §15306; and 2) Awarding a 
Contract in the Amount of $31,631.20 plus $3,000 contingencies to Nor-Cal Pipeline Services, 
Fairfield, CA for CCTV Sanitary Sewer Inspection and Authorizing Mayor to sign. 

 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Phelps to approve Consent Calendar as presented. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 

 

4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 

 
A. City Council Meeting – City Council Meeting – February 10, 2016 

 
Action:  Motion by Phelps, seconded by Strawser to approve the February 10, 2016 Minutes amended 
to add that Council Member Bergman dissented on the Council’s direction related to the Inclement 
Weather Shelter Request related to Agenda Item 8(A). 
(Approved 5 - 0) 

 
5.  DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
7. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A. Subject:  30Th Annual Spring Run Street Closure Request 

Recommendation:  Review and authorize 30th Annual Spring Run street closure request per 
application. 
 

Action:  Motion by Phelps, seconded by Strawser to authorize the 30th Annual Spring Run street 
closure request per application.  
(Approved 5 - 0) 

 
B. Subject: Review of Community Economic Support Program Applications 

Recommendation:  Review proposals and provide guidance related to the funding requests 
and the amount of funding to incorporate into the Fiscal Year 2016/17 budget. 
 

Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Phelps to incorporate $5,000 in the Fiscal Year 2016/17 
City General Fund budget to allocate $1,000 each for five Community Economic Support Program 
applications, including an Update to the Historic Nevada City Tourist Map, 7-Hills Sign Replacement 
Project, Display Cases for Fire Station No. 1, SYRCL Water Conservation School Assembly funding, 
and Providence Spur Trail Improvement Project. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 

 

18



3  

 
C. Subject:  Update on City of Nevada City June 2016 Ballot Measures 

Recommendation: Receive and file. If necessary and desired, designate author(s) of rebuttal 
argument for Measure X. 
  

Action: 
Information Only. 

 
9. CORRESPONDENCE: 

 
10. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 
11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 

 
City Manager Prestwich indicated Staff had concerns with the proposed designated smoking areas and 
would be bringing back a recommendation for a limited three-month pilot project at the March 9 Council 
meeting. 
 
12. CLOSED SESSION (Added to agenda with 5-0 vote) 

 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) the contract City Attorney is requesting a closed 
session regarding a significant exposure to litigation in  one potential case. 
 

Consulting City Attorney DeGraw reported out of Closed Session that direction was provided to staff.  
 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT – 7:50 pm 

 
 
 

        _________________________________ 
        Jennifer Ray, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

19



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

March 9, 2016       www.nevadacityca.gov 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:    2nd Quarter Financial Update, Fiscal Year (fy) 15/16 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file.  

CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 

 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
 
As of December 31, 2015, the City has a cumulative cash total of $2.5 million vs. $3.2 

million December 31, 2014, including $1.0 million in the Local Agency Investment Fund 

(LAIF) yielding .32%, and $1.5 million in Certificates of Deposit (CD’s) with an average 

portfolio maturity of 2.7 years and an average yield of 1.1%.  The reduced cash flow 

year over year is significantly tied to the project work that the City has been conducting 

associated to grants and is timing related as the City submits for reimbursements. 

 

The City’s General Fund long term debt was $14.6k as of December 31, 2015 vs. $464k 

December 31, 2014.  The substantial reduction in debt is associated to the payoff of the 

transfer of funds for fy 14/15 to Nevada County, and not obtaining a loan against 

Nevada City property taxes for fy 15/16. 

 

The City’s Enterprise Fund long term debt was $4.2 million as of December 31, 2015 vs. 

$4.4 million as of December 31, 2014, $217k lower, associated to regular principal 

reduction payments. 

 

As of December 31, 2015, General Fund revenues were $955k vs. $994k December 31, 

2014, a decrease of $38k, year over year (yoy) associated with a decline in safety 

revenue collections based on a one-time collection of asset forfeiture funds in the 2nd 

quarter of fy 14/15 (these are restricted use funds within the General Fund).  General 

Fund revenues received at $955k were 28% (not quite 50% associated to timing in 

receipt of property taxes, $763k) of the $3.4 million budget.    

     

As of December 31, 2015, General Fund expenditures were at $1.9 million vs. $1.9 

million December 31, 2014, a decrease of $27k yoy.  General Administration 

expenditures at $420k were 46% of the $912k operational budget. The Fire Department 

expenditures at $294k were 57% of the $516k operational budget and is associated to 

20



the additional staffing coverage.  The Police Department expenditures at $811k were 

49% of the $1.7 million budget. The Department of Public Works expenditures at $190k 

were 47% of the $409k operational budget.  The Parks and Recreation Department 

expenditures at $144k were 53% of the $273k budget.  The Veteran’s Building 

expenditures at $22k were 45% of the $49k budget.  Typically at the completion of the 

2nd quarter departmental expenditures should be approximately 50% of budget.  Overall 

operational expenditures at $1.9 million were 51% of the $3.73 million budget. 

 

The General Fund had expenditures exceeding revenues of $954k as of December 31, 

2015, higher than fy 14/15 because the City chose not to do a borrowing against 

property taxes from Nevada County.  However, if the borrowing is not considered, 

expenditures exceeding revenues are virtually flat to the fy 14/15.  The City has a 

positive unassigned fund balance of $347k ending fy 14/15 and has maintained a 

continued improving economic financial position over the last four fiscal years. It 

continues to be crucial that City staff monitor incoming revenues and prioritize and 

review program expenditures to support preserving and improving the current financial 

status. 

 

As of December 31, 2015, Special Fund revenues were $1.1k and were 31% of the 

$3.55 million budget.  The City’s two special tax measures have been performing on 

budget.  The City has received $252k in Measure “S” sales tax revenues or 45% of the 

$558k budget, and $186k in Measure “L” sales tax revenues or 45% of $419k budget.  

Most Special Fund revenues are tied to the timing of expenditures by the City and 

reimbursement based.     

  

As of December 31, 2015, the Special Fund expenditures including capital outlay were 

$1.2 million or 33% of the overall $3.8 million budget.  Special Fund expenditures are all 

timing related.   

 

As of December 31, 2015, Water Fund revenues were $403k vs. $449k December 31, 

2014.  The decrease in Water Fund revenues of $46k were associated to community 

water conservation efforts during the ongoing drought conditions.  Water Fund revenues 

received at $403k or 48% of the $835k budget. 

 

As of December 31, 2015 the Water Fund expenditures were at $266k vs. $405k 

December 31, 2014.  The decrease of $139k in Water Fund expenditures was 

associated primarily to capital outlay that was expended during the first two quarters of 

2014 that has not been expended in the same two quarters for 2015, as well as a 

reduction in salaries and benefits associated with staffing changes.  The Water 

21



Department and Water Distribution fund with expenditures of $266k or 33% of the 

$745k operational and capital budget.  

 

The Water Fund had revenues exceeding expenditures of $137k as of December 31, 

2015.  The Water Fund has experienced an improved financial position ending fy 14/15 

at $(168k).  With continued conservation efforts, the City will continue to experience a 

slowing in Water Fund revenues, and with the increase in expenditures for necessary 

repairs.  It is critical that City Staff explore efficiencies in operations and reductions in 

expenditures to maintain the improving financial position of the Water Fund. 

 

As of December 31, 2015, the Wastewater Fund revenues were $550k vs. $671k 

December 31, 2014.  The decrease in Wastewater Fund revenues of $120k was 

associated to the Wastewater rate structure change to 40% fixed and 60% flow based 

on January/February water usage and a decrease in program income that the City 

receives from Robinson Enterprises for leachate hauling. Wastewater Fund revenues 

received at $550k were 41% of the $1.3 million budget. 

 

As of December 31, 2015, the Wastewater Fund expenditures were at $632k vs. $644k 

December 31, 2014.  The small decrease of $13k in Wastewater Fund expenditures 

was associated to a reduction in expenditures for equipment repair and maintenance in 

comparison to the same time last year. The Wastewater Department and Wastewater 

Distribution fund with expenditures of $632k were 41% of the $1.6 million operational 

and capital outlay budget.  

 

The Wastewater Fund had expenditures exceeding revenues of $82k as of December 

31, 2015.  The Wastewater Fund continues to maintain a positive fund position with an 

unrestricted balance of $2.3 million ending fy 14/15. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Fund Financial Status Report 
 Statement of Condition 
 Revenue and Expenditure Report (General Fund, Special Funds, Water Fund & 

Sewer Fund) 
 Major Revenue Graphs 

   
 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

March 9, 2016       www.nevadacityca.gov 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: City of Nevada City Budget Calendar 2016-2017 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and approve the attached budget calendar with 
recommended operating and capital budget preparation schedule for fiscal year 2016-
2017. 
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
 
The City of Nevada City prepares and operating and capital improvement budget every 
fiscal year.  The upcoming budget cycle is for fiscal year 2016-2017.  City staff begins 
developing the next fiscal year budget in March during the mid-year budget cycle, 
followed by public workshops with City Council in May/June. Adoption of the final budget 
is scheduled for the second City Council meeting in June.   
 
It is being recommended that the City Council budget workshop be held on May 17, 2016 
from approximately 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. to provide City staff adequate time to 
implement City Council recommendations and comments to the final draft of the budget 
prior to adoption at the June 8, 2016 City Council meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
There are no fiscal impacts related to approval of the attached budget calendar. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

 Budget Calendar 2016-2017 
 

38

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


City of Nevada City 
Budget Calendar 2016-2017 

     The City of Nevada City prepares an Operating and Capital Improvement Budget 
every year. The upcoming Operating Budget cycle is for fiscal year 2016-2017.  City staff 
begins developing the next fiscal year budget in March during the mid-year budget cycle, 
followed by public workshops with the City Council in May/June, and adoption scheduled 
for the first City Council meeting in June. Below are frequently asked questions about 
the City's budget process. 

What is a Fiscal Year? 

     The City's fiscal year runs from July 1 through June 30 each year. The State of 
California uses the same fiscal year as county and city governments. However, the 
federal government's fiscal year runs from October 1 through September 30, while many 
private businesses use the calendar year January 1-December 31 as their fiscal year. A 
fiscal year represents an accounting cycle for measuring results of operation and the 
City's financial position.  

How does the City's Operating Budget differ from the Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP)? 

     The City's Operating Budget is an itemized plan of estimated City revenues (money 
expected to be received in taxes, fees, and grants) and City expenditures (money 
expected to be spent on programs, services, and administration) projected and officially 
adopted by the City Council for the budget cycle. The City's Operating Budget focuses 
on the day to day management and functioning of City services and includes, but is not 
limited to the following: staff costs, such as fire, police, and recreation personnel; other 
program costs such as tools and supplies; and contracted services such as police 
dispatch and animal control. By State law, the City's Operating Budget must be adopted 
by the City Council as a balanced budget (projected costs are equal to or less than 
expected revenue), no later than June 30th each year. 

     While the Operating Budget focuses on the on-going costs of conducting the City's 
business, the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) focuses on the larger-scale 
construction/renovation of City projects/facilities, such as parks, bicycle/pedestrian 
improvements, major street improvements, water and sewer infrastructure improvements 
and public building construction/renovation (the costs of maintaining/servicing City 
projects/facilities are operating costs). The CIP budget also has a long-term focus with 
projects and activities being projected over a five year period and updated each year 
during the operating budget cycle. Capital improvement projects are often multi-year 
projects that draw upon many different funding sources, including regional transportation 
taxes (Measure S), developer fees, user fees, bond issuance, and grants. Many of these 
revenue sources can only be used for capital improvement projects and cannot be 
transferred to the City's operating budget and used for on-going operational costs. Each 
CIP cycle is a spending plan that is determined through a public hearing(s) where the 
City Council prioritizes projects (based upon available restricted and/or unrestricted 
revenue sources and the evolving needs of the City). The CIP may include projects that 
are unfunded or partially funded and typically there are more CIP projects than funds 
available. 

39



What is the City's operating budget philosophy? 

     The City Council's adopted major operating budget principle is that "current year 
expenditures should be supported by current year revenues. One-time revenues should 
not be used for ongoing costs, but should instead be used for necessary one-time only 
expenditures or to strengthen fund reserves". 

What is the size of the City's General Fund Operating Budget? 

     The projected revenue for the mid-year operating budget for fiscal year 2015-2016 
(effective July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016) is $3.42 million while the budget 
anticipates $3.73 million in expenditures prior to transfers of $381k. Police and fire 
services comprise 57% of the City's general fund operating costs. City staff anticipates 
that the next budget cycle will focus on maintaining current levels of City services and 
programs while holding costs to a minimum in order to follow the City's adopted budget 
management policy that current year expenditures should be supported by current year 
revenues. 

When will the City adopt the Operating Budget for fiscal year 2016-2017? 

     According to State law, the City Council must adopt a balanced operating budget for 
the next budget cycle by June 30th. Staff has already started the process of putting 
together a proposed initial draft operating budget for City Council and public review. 
Below is the budget adoption schedule (may be subject to change). All of the meetings 
listed below are open to the public. 

March 9th   City Council adopts budget calendar 

March 14th – 31st Budget process begins – Departments prepare budget 
worksheets 

 
April 5th – 8th  Budget Review 
 Assistant City Manager and Department Heads 
 
April 14th  Budget Review and Update 

City Manager and Assistant City Manager 
 
April 28th   Review Budget Adjustments to 1st Draft 

City Manager and Assistant City Manager  
 
May 17th    City Council Budget Workshop 
               (or suggestions for a morning or evening) 

 
June 8th     City Council adoption of final fiscal year 
    16-17 budget 

40



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA 95959 

March 9, 2016       www.nevadacityca.gov 

 

 

TITLE:  Hosted Short-Term Rental Registration Fee and Good Neighbor Policy 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Pass Resolution 2016-XX adopting a processing fee for reviewing registration 
forms for hosted short-term rentals. 

2. Pass Resolution 2016-XX adopting a “Good Neighbor Policy” to be distributed to 
renters of hosted short-term rental units.   

CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  On December 9, 2015 the City Council adopted 
Ordinance 17.72 of the zoning regulations in Title 17 of the City Municipal Code 
allowing hosted short term rentals within Nevada City residential zones. The adopted 
ordinance includes a provision for the City to adopt procedures for processing the 
registration of hosted short-term rental units. To date, staff has prepared a registration 
questionnaire to be submitted with the required business license application.  In order to 
compensate for staff time to review and archive registration forms staff is proposing a 
$100 registration fee to be submitted in addition to the business license application fee. 
 
Staff has also prepared a “Good Neighbor Policy” to distribute to renters pursuant to 
Condition B.10 of the adopted ordinance which allows for conduct guidelines set forth 
by the City to be distributed to renters. This policy document is intended to discourage 
inappropriate behavior during a renter’s stay in order to preserve the integrity of the 
surrounding neighborhood.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: California courts have held that CEQA does 
not apply to voter-sponsored (petition) initiatives and CEQA Guidelines §15378(b)(3) 
now provides such initiatives are not “projects” subject to environmental review. Since 
the above Resolutions are being requested as a means to implement the previously 
adopted initiative, they are also not subject to environmental review. 
 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The requested registration fee will offset costs 
associated with processing hosted short-term rental registration forms. There is no 
financial consideration associated with the “Good Neighbor Policy.” 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Exhibit A – Draft Good Neighbor Policy 
Exhibit B – Draft Resolution, Registration Fee 
Exhibit C – Draft Resolution, Good Neighbor Policy 
Exhibit D – Ordinance 2015-12 (Hosted Short-Term Rentals) 

 
41

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


                                    City of Nevada City 

 
City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

 

 
 

HOSTED SHORT-TERM RENTAL 
GOOD NEIGHBOR POLICY 

 
Dear Guest, 
 
Welcome to Nevada City! Hosted short-term rentals are an ideal way to share our beautiful historic town with 
guests around the world. This manner of guest accommodation allows you an experience that is authentic to 
residential living in Nevada City. Because this authentic experience necessitates that non-residents immerse 
themselves into established residential neighborhoods, it is important that all guests demonstrate respect for the 
community and the people that call our town home. To that end, Nevada City respectfully requests that you 
abide by the following “Good Neighbor Policy:” 

 
1. 24-Hour Contact Information. If at any time you have concerns about your stay, please call the 24-hour 

contact number listed below. In the event of an emergency, please call 911. 
 

Host owner/manager contact number:  _____________________________ 
 

2. Respect for Neighbors. Be friendly and courteous, and treat your neighbors like you wish to be treated. 
Please be familiar with and abide by any “house rules” imposed by the host including, but not limited to 
smoking, parking, occupancy limitation, and pet supervision.   
 

3. Noise. Nighttime noise limits and quiet hours are imposed from 9pm to 7am. Please be considerate of the 
neighborhood and your neighbor’s right to quiet enjoyment of their home and property. All guests shall 
abide by the noise controls established for residential uses in Chapter 8.20 of the Municipal Code. 
 

4. Maintenance of Property: Please pick up after yourself and keep the property clean, and free of trash.  
 

5. Property Use. In no instance may a short-term rental agreement allow for commercial meetings such as 
luncheons, parties, weddings, charitable fundraising, or other special event gathering.   
 

6. Pets. If pets are allowed under the terms of your rental agreement, please promptly clean-up after them. 
Prevent excessive and prolonged barking and keep pets from roaming the neighborhood. Store pet food 
indoors and in a secure manner in order to prevent enticement of wildlife and pests onto the premises.  
 

7. Parking & Traffic Safety.  Please park on-site whenever possible. Do not park on lawns or park in a manner 
which blocks driveways, sidewalks, or alleys. Drive slowly through neighborhoods and watch for 
pedestrians and children playing. No more than one vehicle is permitted for each short-term rental. 
 

8. Tenant/Guest Responsibility: Only registered guests and approved visitors are permitted on the premises 
of the hosted short-term rental property. All guests and visitors are expected to follow the Good Neighbor 
Guidelines. Please read your rental agreement for additional terms and restrictions. 

 
Thank you for your cooperation in maintaining the neighborly fabric of Nevada City’s residential community. 
We hope you enjoy your stay as a guest in our very special town.  
 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
__________________ 
Amy Wolfson  
Nevada City Planner 

42



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-XX 

 
RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY TO ADOPT A 

ONE-TIME FEE TO PROCESS HOSTED SHORT-TERM  
RENTAL APPLICATIONS 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, at the regular meeting on December 9, 2015, the City Council 

adopted Ordinance No. 2015-12 adding Section 17.72.080 to Chapter 17.72 of 
the Zoning Regulations in Title 17 of the Nevada city Municipal Code allowing 
Hosted Short-Term Rentals in Nevada City Residential Zones; and  

  
WHEREAS, a fee is needed to provide reimbursement for staff time in 

administering and processing hosted short-term rental applications; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Nevada City provided proper notice and held a 

Public Hearing at its meeting of March 9, 2016. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Nevada City adopts a 
one-time fee retroactive to the effective date of Ordinance 2015-12 to process 
hosted short-term rental applications, in the amount of $100 for estimated staff 
time, City overhead and archiving costs.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regularly scheduled meeting of the Nevada City 
City Council held on the 9th day of March, 2016 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
           _____ 
       Jennifer Ray, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Niel Locke, City Clerk 
 

43



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-XX 

 
RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY TO ADOPT A 

GOOD NEIGHBOR POLICY FOR GUESTS OF 
HOSTED SHORT-TERM RENTALS 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, at the regular meeting on December 9, 2015, the City Council 

adopted Ordinance No. 2015-12 adding Section 17.72.080 to Chapter 17.72 of 
the Zoning Regulations in Title 17 of the Nevada city Municipal Code allowing 
Hosted Short-Term Rentals in Nevada City Residential Zones; and  
 

WHEREAS, condition B.10 of the hosted short term rental ordinance 
allows for conduct guidelines set forth by the City of Nevada City to be presented 
to hosted short-term renters prior to, or upon their occupancy of the unit;  and 
 

WHEREAS, a Good Neighbor Policy is intended to protect residential 
neighborhoods from inappropriate behavior during guests’ stays in Nevada City’s 
residential neighborhoods; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Nevada City adopts 
the attached “Hosted Short-Term Rental Good Neighbor Policy,” Exhibit A. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regularly scheduled meeting of the Nevada City 
City Council held on the 9th day of March, 2016 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
           _____ 
       Jennifer Ray, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Niel Locke, City Clerk 
 
 

44



45



46



47



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

March 9, 2016      www.nevadacityca.gov 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:   Proposed Three-Month Designated Smoking Area Pilot Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve three-month designated smoking area pilot project in 
the Commercial Street Parking Lot. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager; Bryan McAlister, City Engineer  
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  On February 24, 2016, the City Council reviewed 
receptacle designs for two previously approved designated smoking areas in the 
Historic District. At the meeting, the City Council authorized City staff to move forward 
with the receptacle design but also requested staff relocate the two designated smoking 
areas as follows: 
 

1) Relocate the previously approved Commercial Street Parking Lot 

designated smoking area (shown in the attached Commercial St. map) to 

the location of the bench adjacent to the fence. 

  

2) Relocate the previously approved designated smoking area in the Nevada 

Street parking lot to the Spring Street parking lot. 

The City Engineer has toured the Commercial Street parking lot and identified a few 
challenges with the requested modification. In order to properly adhere to Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements, it would be necessary to remove a significant 
amount of concrete to provide a safe at-grade smoking area accessible by wheelchair 
near the bench location. The City Engineer has indicated this will be much more 
expensive than the original location because of concrete removal and the need to 
construct a new curb closer to the fence. Additionally, the bench location is near a 
Family Child Care Home where children are present, which presents concerns about 
second hand smoke exposure.   
 
The City has also received a significant amount of correspondence from residents and 
merchants near the Spring Street parking lot expressing concerns about the presence 
of a designated smoking area near their property. Staff has identified a location adjacent 
to the freeway that would be as minimally impactful to businesses/residents as possible 
(see attached Spring St. map). 
 
However, based on the above considerations, staff is recommending the City Council 
consider authorizing a limited three-month pilot project in the Commercial Street parking 
lot’s original location which can be implemented without concrete modifications. 
Following the three-month pilot, Staff will provide the Council with a report on how the 
designated area worked including impact on litter, loitering, compliance, etc.  This will 
provide the Council with the opportunity to evaluate whether to continue with the 

48



Commercial Street designated smoking area and location, and whether or not to 
consider adding additional locations in the future. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Establishing designated smoking areas with 
properly designed fire resistant receptacles and the placement of receptacles in various 
locations assists in cleaning the environment in the immediate area, reducing the 
amount of toxic waste entering the drains ultimately ending up in Deer Creek and other 
streams, reducing the fire dangers associated with the careless discarding of cigarettes, 
and reducing second hand smoke exposure. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Commercial Parking Lot Map 

 Spring Street Parking Lot Map 

 Nevada Street Parking Lot Map 

49



50



51



52



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA 95959 

March 9, 2016       www.nevadacityca.gov 

 

 

TITLE:  Robinson Plaza Tables and Chairs 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Find the project categorically exempt pursuant to CEQA Guideline §15301 

2. Approve the design and placement of permanent table and chair units at 
Robinson Plaza 

CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:   
 
On March 25, 2015, the City Council authorized a proposal to place two tables and 
accompanying chairs in Robinson Plaza for a trial period of June 1 through October 31. 
The City experienced no reported vandalism or complaints during the trial period. 
During this period, volunteers from the Chamber of Commerce and local businesses 
assisted with cleaning and placement of umbrellas.  
 
On October 28, 2015, the City Council reviewed the trial project and indicated they were 
supportive of the placement of up to three permanent tables with a size limitation of 36” 
in diameter. The Council also discussed the idea of utilizing a local 
designer/manufacturer to work with the Planning Commission on bringing forward a 
formal proposal for Council approval. 
 
On December 10, 2015, the Planning Commission reviewed an initial proposal to place 
permanent tables and chairs in Robinson Plaza. At that meeting, Vice Mayor Phelps 
presented Commissioners with several design options by Mark Oldland, a local metal-
smith and furniture maker. Among the discussion items, the Commissioners discussed: 
the number of seats, whether or not to include backs, whether or not the table tops 
should be grid or solid style, and color choices. Vice Mayor Phelps offered to refer the 
discussion items back to Mr. Oldland, including a design that included three table 
shapes which incorporate three different back styles pursuant to the Commission 
discussion.  
 
With consideration of testimony heard at previous public meetings, along with the 
discussion at the December Planning Commission meeting, Mr. Oldland provided 
revised conceptual drawings to the Planning Commission on February 18, 2016. The 
design proposal included three steel tables with connected chairs that would be bolted 
to the existing brick surface of the plaza. 
 

 

53

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 The Planning Commission made the following recommendation at their 
December 10, 2016 meeting: 

 Three table Chair Units: 
o 30-inch triangular unit with 2 chairs (with space available to accommodate 

accessibility needs) 
o 30-inch triangular unit with 3 chairs 
o 40x50-inch rectangular unit with 4 chairs 

 Solid surface top 

 Backless to accommodate versatile use, cost reduction, visual simplicity 

 Color: Cardinal Power Coatings, textured Mock Rock (T091-GR309) 

 Placement: Two units to be placed in existing location of temporary units, and 
one unit to be determined onsite with Commissioners Croul and Meek in 
conjunction with the Council 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: The CEQA Guidelines for Categorical 
Exemption §15301 includes minor alteration of existing public or private facilities 
involving no or negligible expansion of use beyond the existing use. Consistent with this 
exemption, the addition of permanent tables and chairs to Robinson Plaza will not 
expand the use, as it will remain public open space with the versatility to accommodate 
an array of community gatherings. The table and chair features will merely offer a place 
for those gathered at community events to sit comfortably. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The total cost of the units will be approximately 
$8,700 plus tax for a backless chair option. The City’s donation account has $2,500 
available, which could be supplemented by an external fundraising effort.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

Exhibit A – Conceptual Drawings  
Exhibit B – Detail Summary by Mark Oldland 

 

54



City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

Exhibit A.1

55



City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

Exhibit A.2

56



Mark	 Oldland	 sculptor, designer
32796	 Ridge	 Rd.	 	 Dutch	 Flat,	 CA.	 95714-0011

markoldlandart.com

email:	 alpinexile@gmail.com	 	 ph.	 530	 205	 5838

Details	 regarding	 Nevada	 City's	 Robinson	 Plaza	 -	 proposed	 integrated	 seats	 /tables.

Specific	 info.	 as	 I	 understand	 it:

	 3	 units	 total

-one	 with	 seating	 for	 3	 three	 people

-one	 with	 seating	 for	 2	 people	 with	 a	 wheelchair	 friendly	 (open)	 side

-one	 with	 seating	 for	 4	 people

Please	 reference	 the	 associated	 drawings-	 

Recommendations:

-Solid	 tops.	 This	 style	 would	 facilitate	 easier	 cleaning	 (crumbs	 are	 one	 thing,	 while	 liquids	 (espe-
cially	 the	 sweet	 variety)	 are	 quite	 another.	 Cost	 would	 increase	 considerably	 for	 perforated	 /open
tops	 as	 they	 require	 more	 frame	 support	 and	 extra	 work	 at	 the	 edge.	 Also,	 the	 best	 choice	 in	 my
mind	 would	 be	 a	 product	 known	 as	 'punch	 plate',	 which	 is	 costly	 material.
The	 powder	 coating	 would	 also	 become	 more	 challenging	 /expensive	 with	 a	 perforated	 build.

-Finish.	 The	 neutral	 'mock	 rock'	 which	 resembles	 granite,	 is	 the	 best	 user-friendly	 choice	 by	 far.

-Back	 rests.	 Seats	 with	 backs	 are	 sensible,	 but	 only	 if	 immovable	 (no	 pivot	 for	 easier	 access).	 Also,
space	 from	 seat	 to	 table	 edge	 would	 be	 maxed	 for	 the	 sake	 of	 access	 if	 back	 rests	 are	 desired.

Build	 details:

Involved	 in	 the	 build	 are	 1/4"	 plate	 (tops,	 seats,	 backs),	 pipe	 (pedestals),	 round	 bar	 (central	 
pedestals),	 solid	 spheres	 of	 various	 diameters	 (central	 pedestals)	 and	 channel	 (seat	 to	 back	 connec-
tors),	 1/2"x	 6"	 curvilinear	 plates	 (bases).
All	 would	 require	 sandblasting	 after	 fabrication	 to	 ensure	 best	 possible	 powder	 coat	 (finish)	 results.

Overall	 cost:	 As	 presently	 conceived,	 with	 my	 recommendations	 accepted:

8,700.	 without	 backs

10,900.	 with	 backs	 	 -550.	 additional	 cost	 on	 teardrop	 style	 backs	 (for	 9	 of	 them)

Then	 there	 is	 sales	 tax,	 as	 well.

I	 was	 called	 on	 to	 investigate	 available	 /historical	 materials	 at	 the	 city	 yard.	 While	 drawn	 to	 the	 
possibility	 of	 integrating	 old,	 elaborately	 cast	 hydrants,	 I	 realized	 it's	 not	 plausible	 due	 to	 the	 
dimensions	 of	 the	 table	 tops	 in	 relation	 to	 those	 of	 the	 hydrants.	 Knocking	 knees	 against	 such	 
things	 is	 no	 fun.	 

Timeframe	 on	 these	 is	 contingent	 on	 the	 varibles	 of	 two	 committees,	 as	 well	 as	 any	 prior
constraints	 regarding	 my	 commitments	 /workload	 and	 the	 powder	 coater's	 scheduling.	 

I	 appreciate	 your	 consideration	 -Mark

Exhibit B

57


	1-REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 03.09.16.pdf
	3A-1 Award of Contract
	3B-1 Nevada City Farmers Market Street Closure Request
	3B-2 Farmers Market Street Closure Request Application
	4A-1 Minutes 02.24.2016.Draft
	5A-1 SR 03-09-16 2nd Quarter Financials
	5A-2 2nd Quarter Financials
	5B-1 SR 03-09-16 Budget Calendar
	5B-2 Budget Calendar 2016-2017
	6A-1 Hosted Short-Term Rental Fee and Good Neighbor Policy Staff Report
	6A-2 Draft Good Neighbor Policy
	6A-3 Resolution 2016-XX - Fee Adoption
	6A-4 Resolution 2016-XX - Good Neighbor Policy
	6A-5 Ordinance 2015-12
	7A-1 Designated Smoking Area Pilot Project
	7A-2 Recommended Designated Smoking Area Locations
	non-smoking rev1 Commercial St.pdf
	non-smoking rev1 Nevada St
	non-smoking rev1 Spring St

	7B-1 Robinson Plaza Tables and Chairs
	7B-2 Exhibits A, B



